
        STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, COUNTY OF UPSHUR, CITY OF BUCKHANNON, TO WIT: 

A regular meeting of the City of Buckhannon Waste Collection Board was held at City Hall on March 

2, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.  The following were in attendance: 

Mayor     David McCauley   Present 
Assistant Recorder/Finance Director Amberle Jenkins   Present 
Board Member    Robert Osburn     Present  
Board Member    Mary Albaugh    Absent 
Public Works Director   Jerry Arnold    Present 
Waste Supervisor   Jeff Wamsley    Present 
City Engineer    Jay Hollen    Present 
Office Clerk     Barbara Hinkle    Present 
 
Meeting Agenda Posted 02-27-17 

 
City of Buckhannon Waste Collection Board – 4:00 pm in Council Chambers  Meeting Agenda for 
Thursday March 2, 2017 

A. Call to Order 
A.1     Moment of Silence  
A.2     Pledge to the Flag of the United States of America 

 
B. Recognized Guests 

  
C.     Department Report- Jeff Wamsley  
 
D.    Correspondence 

D.1    WV DEP Recycling Assistance Grant Final  Report 
D.2   Fuel Surcharge Rec. PSC 02-13-17 

                                                                                                                                                                                    
E.      Financial Report- Amby Jenkins 
 
F.     Consent Agenda 

F.1       Approval of Minutes – February 2, 2017  Waste Collection Meeting 
                
G.      Strategic Issues for Discussion and Vote 
         G.1       Pecks Run 
  .Kennedy Forest Management-Timber Appraisal 

G.2       Toter Update                                                                                                                                                                    
G.3       Rate Increase 
G.4       April Make It Shine                                                                                                               
          

H.      Board Members Comments and Announcements 
       

I.        Mayor’s Comments and Announcements 
 
J.        Adjournment 
                                                       Posted 2-27-2017 

 

Mayor McCauley called the meeting to order followed by a moment of silence and pledge to the US 

Flag. 

 

Department Report 

 

 Jeff Wamsley:  Mr. Wamsley reported that things are going on as usual and that they are still 
waiting on the new garbage truck.  Mr. Wamsley reported that during the storm on 

Wednesday March the 1st they lost shingles on the roof and have already been replaced. 

 

    Mr. Wamsley also  reported and explained the following reports: 

 

 Transfer Station and Recycling:   

 



 
 

 

 

Correspondence: 

 

The following correspondence was submitted as information to the Board Members: 

 

 WV DEP Recycling Assistance Grant Final Report 

 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 Fuel Surcharge Rec. PSC 2-13-17 

 

 
 

Finance Report:  The following report was submitted by Mrs. Jenkins. 

                               

 

 



 

 



 

 



 
 

 

Amby explained that the expenditures are over the revenues due to a track hoe that had caught fire 

two years ago. It was fixed a year ago. The bill totaled $22,000.00 and had been missed being paid 

and was paid in February. 

 

Mrs. Jenkins reported that the interest rate may change a little after we receive the final invoice on 

the new truck. 

 
Mrs. Jenkins stated that she is working on insurance renewals on property and they do not expect 

to have much change on rates and that they are going to get another quote from another company. 

 

Motion Osburn/ Mayor McCauley to accept Mrs. Jenkins financial report.  Motion Carried. 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 Approval of minutes – February 2, 2017 Waste Collection Board meeting: 

 

Motion Osburn/ Mayor McCauley to approve the minutes of the meeting held February 2, 

2017.  Motion carried. 

 

 

Strategic Issues for Discussion and Vote 

 

•  Pecks Run – Mr. Wamsley reported that Nate Kennedy had done an appraisal in 2011 and he 

took those numbers and recalculated with today’s prices and presented the following appraisal 

 

     -Kennedy Forest Management-Timber Appraisal 



 
 

 
 

Mayor McCauley asked would the timbering compromise the particular slopes on the property?  Mr. 

Wamsley stated that where the timber is, it would not compromise it.  Mayor McCauley asked Mr. 

Arnold and Mr. Wamsley what their recommendation is relative to trying to promote the timbering 

of these trees.  Mr. Arnold stated that a select cut opens the canopy so new growth can be 

established.  Mayor McCauley asked if the recommendation is to market for a select cut certain of 

this timber that is on our property at Pecks Run? Mr. Arnold’s thoughts are to market the timber 

and then introduce the property for sale.  Mayor McCauley asked if we are good with promoting the 

sale of the timber first and then looking toward at the sale of the property, Mr. Arnold agreed.  

Mayor McCauley asked to do the timber for now and revisit the sale of the residue after the timber 

is cut.  Mayor McCauley asked how long it will take and do we need to bid it out.  Mr. Arnold stated 

that he thought that we would have to bid it out.  Mr. Osburn asked if doing a timber sell would Mr. 

Kennedy have to do another timber cruse?  Mr. Arnold stated that Mr. Kennedy also markets 



timber, cruses the timber and conducts the actual sell of timber.  Mayor McCauley asked are we 

required because of the value of this select cut do a notice to bid out, Mr. Arnold stated that he 

would think so.  Mr. Arnold stated he thinks that we approach timber companies and say that we 

are interested in select cutting this piece of property, and have an onsite meeting and cruse the 

property with the timber companies and at that point and time ask them to solicit bids.  Mr. Osburn 

asked if Mr. Kennedy would be able to perform the duty of soliciting bids for the City?  Mr. Arnold 

stated that we could probably contract Mr. Kennedy to perform that duty for us because it is going 

to be under the minimum bid requirements but we would still have to go under the legal to sell the 

timber.   

Motion Osburn / Mayor McCauley to retain Nate Kennedy services to do the cruse 

reevaluation and start us on the path towards sell of the select cut timber.  Motion Carried. 

Mr. Osburn asked when Mr. Arnold talks to Mr. Kennedy to get a better timeline at what he is 

looking at for the possible sell of the timber may end up.  Mr. Arnold stated that we will have to 

have exact dates for the legal notices.  Mayor McCauley is hoping to have more information by the 

April meeting and would like to be in a position to open bids at the May meeting.  Mr. Arnold stated 

that it would depend on Mr. Kennedy’s schedule. 

Toter Update:   

-Mr. Arnold reported that the 1st phase is waiting on the rate study from Mr. Dingess and building 

revenues from the fuel surcharge to offset some of the initial cost.  Mr. Arnold stated in order to do 

an increase we have to change our tariff, so Mr. Arnold would like to do a tariff and rate change at 

the same time.  Mayor McCauley asked if the waste collection increase is done in the fall and once 

start collecting the funds be in a position and would we be able to order the toters on a payment 

plan.  Mr. Arnold’s thoughts are yes he would like to have all the toters in storage before we 

implement the change in our tariff.  Mr. Arnold stated he would like to order two sizes 64 and 96 

gallon and have the majority of them in and then start the process with the change in our tariff on 

how we collect and looking at September.  

- Mayor McCauley asked if the provider would work with us on a payment plan.  Mr. Arnold stated 

that we do not have a provider yet and that we would have to bid that out.  Mr. Arnold thinks that 

with the total number that we are looking at that any company that we deal with would work with 

us on that.  Mayor McCauley asked do we want to be in a position about June or July to put the 1st 

phase of the toter process out for bid, Mr. Arnold replied that we would have to.  Mr. Arnold stated 

that the expenditure of the toters needs to be in place before going to the PSC for a rate increase, we 

are not allowed to charge the customer for the toter, it would need to be shown as an operating 

cost.  Mr. Arnold is looking at the rate increase not taking affect until the 2018-19 budget year. Mrs. 

Jenkins stated that we are better off to start on the pricing on the toter and get the financing in 

place.  Mr. Arnold informed the board of the pricing of a 96 gallon toter is $56 per toter.  Mayor 

McCauley asked if they would give us a firm offer on that and to lock the price in for certain amount 

of months.  

- Mr. Hollen stated that normally you can ask them to hold the prices for 60 to 90 days.  Mr. Arnold 

asks about doing the tariff change on how we operate prior to the rate increase and asks if that is a 

correct statement?  Mayor McCauley believes that tariff modification and a rate increase are one in 

the same thing.   Mr. Arnold states that we have to modify the way we collect garbage by using the 

toter.  Do we do a rate increase and the modification to the tariff at the same time, or do we want to 

do the modification to the tariff in our collection method and then the rate increase on the backside.  

If we already have the toter in play it makes sense to do the modification on how we collect 

garbage.  Mayor McCauley states that he does not see the two things as being indistinguishable and 

thinks it all has to be done at the same time.  Mr. Arnold said that when Mr. Wamsley talked to the 

Public Service Commission on how do we go about implementing the toter system and they said 

that we have to do a tariff modification to change your operations to use the toter system.  Mr. 

Hollen stated that we have to implement the program and show that we have incurred the expense 

and then ask for an increase.   

-Mr. Osburn asked Mr. Arnold do you need a decision from the board on making the tariff change 

for operations at this meeting. Mr. Arnold stated no. The direction of the board and Mr. Arnold 

needs to be in agreement.  We are looking at getting  numbers together for a bid packet for 

providers of the toters to be out July 2017 and have toters ordered and in by September 2017with a 

tariff change on how we collect.   With  a possible rate increase around July 2018. 

 



Rate Increase:  The rate increase was discussed in the above toter discussions. 

 

April Make It Shine 

 

 Motion Osburn / Mayor McCauley approve the four days of free clean-up in April.  Motion 

Carried.  

 

Mayor and Board Comments: 

 Mr. Osburn asked if there are regulations to require businesses to clean up?  Mr. Osburn had 
concerns of debris in various areas of the city.  Mayor McCauley stated that would fall 

under Zoning and Housing Enforcement and can be turned over to Vincent Smith the Code 

Enforcement Officer.  Mr. Osburn also commented on the good job the employees are 

doing.  

 Mayor McCauley stated that he and Vincent Smith had a discussion about composting. He 
asked Mr. Arnold about composting and what is the position on organizational and 

personal composting.  Mr. Arnold stated that we encourage backyard composting. 

 Jerry Arnold wanted to thank Mr. Wamsley and the Waste Department employees for 

helping with the demolition at the Theatre and with helping clean up storm debris at the 

walk trail. 

There being no further business to be conducted the meeting was adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 

 

Mayor David McCauley                          _________________________________________________________ 

Assistant Recorder Amberle Jenkins _________________________________________________________ 

 


